### **BYLAWS**

OF

BRADDOCK HILL PROPERTY OWNERS' ASSOCIATION, INC.

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

			PA	.GI
ARTICLE	I DEFINITIONS			
1.01	Declaration			
1.02	2 Other Definitions			
ARTICLE I	II OFFICES			
ARTICLE I	III MEMBERSHIP, VOTING, QUORUM AND PROXIES	• • • •		1
3.01	Membership			1
3.02	Voting Rights	• • • • •	• • •	1
3.03	Quorum		• • •	
3.04	Proxies	• • • •	• • •	. 4
3.05	Majority Vote	• • • •	• • •	. 2
		• • • •	• • •	. 2
ARTICLE I	V ADMINISTRATION			. 3
4.01	Annual Meeting			_
4.02	Special Meetings	• • • •	• • •	. 3
4.03	Special Meetings	• • • •	• • •	. 3
4.04	Place of Meeting	• • • •	• • •	. 3
4.05	Notice of Meeting	• • • •	• • •	. 3
4.06	Informal Action by Owners	• • • •	• • •	. 3
7.00	Voting	• • • •	• • •	. 4
ARTICLE V	DECLARANT CONTROL			. 4
5.01	Declarant Control of the Agassistics			
5.02	Declarant Control of the Association	• • • •	• • •	. 4
5.02	Elections By Owners	• • • •	• • •	. 4
ARTICLE VI	I BOARD OF DIRECTORS	• • • • •	• • •	. 5
6.01	Number, Tenure and Qualifications			_
6.02	Resignations: Vacancies	• • • • •	• • •	. >
6.03	Resignations; Vacancies	• • • •	• • •	. 5
6.04	Powers	• • • •	• • •	6
6.05	Managing Agent	• • • •	• • •	6
6.06	Regular Meetings	• • • •	• • •	6
6.07	Special Meetings	• • • •	• • •	6
6.08	Quorum	• • • •	• • •	7
6.09	Waiver of Notice Informal Action by Directors	• • • •	• • •	
<b>U.</b> U.	HILDINIAL ACTION DY DIRECTORS			7

	-	PAGE
ARTICLE VII OFFICERS AND AGENTS	• • • • • •	
7.01 General		
7.02 Removal of Officers		
7.03 Vacancies		
7.04 President		
7.05 Vice Presidents		
7.06 Secretary		
7.07 Treasurer		
ARTICLE VIII RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE OWNER		9
ARTICLE IX EVIDENCE OF OWNERSHIP, REGISTRATION OF MAILI	NG	
ADDRESS AND LIEN HOLDERS		9
9.01 Proof of Ownership		9
9.02 Registration of Mailing Address		
9.03 Address of the Association		
ARTICLE X SECURITY INTEREST IN MEMBERSHIP	• • • • • •	10
ARTICLE XI AMENDMENTS	• • • • • • •	11
11.01 By Directors		. 11
11.02 Owners		
ARTICLE XII MISCELLANEOUS		11
12.01 Seal		11
12.01 Seal		
12.03 Construction with Other Documents		

#406781 iii

#### **BYLAWS**

**OF** 

#### BRADDOCK HILL PROPERTY OWNERS' ASSOCIATION, INC.

# ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS

#### 1.01 Declaration.

As used herein "Declaration" means the Declaration of Land Use Restrictions for Braddock Hill Subdivision recorded at Reception No. \_\_\_\_\_ in the real property records of Summit County, Colorado.

#### 1.02 Other Definitions.

Unless otherwise defined herein, all capitalized terms used herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Declaration.

# ARTICLE II OFFICES

The Association is a Colorado nonprofit corporation, with its principal office at 106 North French Street, Suite 220, P.O. Box 8029, Breckenridge, Colorado 80424. The Association may also have offices and may carry on its purposes at such other places within and outside the State of Colorado as the Board of Directors of the Association may from time to time determine.

### ARTICLE III MEMBERSHIP, VOTING, OUORUM AND PROXIES

#### 3.01 Membership.

The members of the Association shall be as set forth in the Articles.

#### 3.02 <u>Voting Rights</u>.

(a) The Association shall have one class of voting membership. The total number of votes shall be equal to the total number of Lots existing within the Subdivision from time to time. Each Lot to which a Membership is appurtenant pursuant to the Declaration shall be entitled to one vote, except that the Association shall have no voting rights with respect to a Lot owned by the Association.

1

Person, such Owners shall be entitled to cast one collective vote; fractional voting shall not be allowed. If Owners sharing a Membership cannot agree among themselves as to how to cast their vote when they are required to cast their vote on a particular matter, they shall lose their right to vote on such matter. If any Owner casts a vote representing a certain Membership, it will thereafter be conclusively presumed for all purposes that the Owner was acting with the authority and consent of all Owners with whom such Owner shares the Membership, unless objection thereto is made to the chairperson of the meeting at the time the vote is cast. If more than one vote is cast for any particular Membership, none of such votes shall be counted and all of such votes shall be deemed null and void.

#### 3.03 Quorum.

Except as otherwise required by law or the Articles, the presence in person or by proxy of Owners entitled to vote more than twenty percent (20%) of the total votes of the Owners holding Memberships shall constitute a quorum.

#### 3.04 Proxies.

Votes may be cast in person or by proxy. Every proxy must be executed in writing by the Owner or his duly authorized attorney-in-fact. Such proxy shall be filed with the secretary of the Association before or at the time of the meeting. No proxy shall be valid after the expiration of eleven months from the date of its execution unless otherwise provided in the proxy. If a Lot is owned by more than one Owner, any such Owner may execute a proxy on behalf of all such Owners, and it will be conclusively presumed for all purposes that such Owner acted with the authority and consent of all Owners with whom such Owner shares the Membership, unless objection thereto is made to the chairperson of the meeting at the time of the vote to which the proxy relates. If more than one proxy is executed for any particular Membership and such proxies contain contrary instructions regarding any vote, no such proxy shall be counted and all such proxies shall be deemed null and void for purpose of the vote as to which such proxies conflict.

#### 3.05 Majority Vote.

At any meeting of the Owners, if a quorum is present, the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes represented at the meeting, in person or by proxy, shall be the act of the Owners, unless the vote of a greater number is required by law, the Articles, the Declaration or these Bylaws.

### ARTICLE IV ADMINISTRATION

#### 4.01 Annual Meeting.

The annual meeting of the Owners shall be held at a time designated by the Board of Directors of the Association on the second Saturday in the month of February in each year, or at such other date in February or March designated by the Board of Directors, beginning with the year 1998, for the purpose of electing directors and for the transaction of such other business as may come before the meeting. If the day fixed for the annual meeting shall be a legal holiday in Colorado, such meeting shall be held on the next succeeding business day.

#### 4.02 Special Meetings.

Special meetings of the Owners, for any purpose, unless otherwise prescribed by statute, may be called by the president or by a majority of the directors of the Board of Directors, and shall be called by the president at the request of Owners entitled to vote twenty percent (20%) or more of the total votes of all Owners holding Memberships.

#### 4.03 Place of Meeting.

The Board of Directors may designate the Association's principal offices or any place within Summit County, Colorado, as the place for any annual meeting or for any special meeting called by the Board of Directors.

#### 4.04 Notice of Meeting.

Written or printed notice of any meeting of the Owners, stating the place, day and hour of the meeting, and the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called, shall be delivered personally or by mail to each Owner entitled to vote at such meeting not less than fifteen nor more than fifty days before the date of the meeting. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid and addressed to the Owner at his or her address within the Subdivision or such other address as such Owner designates as the address for notice in a written notice to the secretary of the Association pursuant to Section 9.02 below. For the purpose of determining Owners entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of the Owners, the Board of Directors may set a record date for such determination of Owners, in accordance with the laws of the State of Colorado. If requested by the Person or Persons lawfully calling such meeting, the secretary shall give notice thereof at the expense of the Association.

#### 4.05 <u>Informal Action by Owners</u>.

Any action required or permitted to be taken at a meeting of the Owners may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all of the Owners entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter thereof. Such consent shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote of the Owners.

3

### 4.06 Voting.

In the election of directors there shall be one vote per Lot, except those Lots owned by the Association at the time of such election, but the Owner or group of Owners owning a Lot entitled to voting rights shall have the right to cast such single vote for as many persons as there are directors to be elected. Cumulative voting shall not be allowed in the election of directors or for any other purpose.

### ARTICLE V DECLARANT CONTROL

#### 5.01 Declarant Control of the Association.

- (a) Subject to the terms and conditions of paragraphs 5.01(b) and (c) and Section 5.02 below, Declarant shall have the exclusive right to appoint and remove two-thirds (rounded upward to the nearest whole director) of the members of the Board of Directors during the Declarant Control Period. The term "Declarant Control Period" means the period commencing on the date hereof and ending on the date on which Declarant no longer owns any Lot or Tract.
- (b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in these Bylaws or in any other Association Document, Declarant shall have the exclusive right to appoint and remove all members of the Board of Directors of the Association during that portion of the Declarant Control Period commencing on the date hereof and ending on the date on which 95 percent of the Property has been sold to a Person or Persons other than Declarant.
- (c) Declarant may voluntarily surrender its right to appoint and remove Directors, or any of them, prior to the expiration of the Declarant Control Period, by giving written notice to Association that Declarant relinquishes its right to appoint all Directors or any Director, which notice shall be accompanied by the written resignation of those Directors or that Director. In the event Declarant so relinquishes its right with respect to a Director or all Directors, Declarant may require, for the remainder of the Declarant Control Period, that specific actions of the Association or the Board of Directors, as described in a recorded instrument executed by Declarant, be approved by the Declarant before they become effective.

#### 5.02 Elections By Owners.

- (a) Not later than thirty days after the date as of which 95 percent of the Property and the Expansion Property has been sold to a Person or Persons other than Declarant, the Owners entitled to vote shall elect one director to the Board of Directors.
- (b) Not later than thirty days after the expiration of the Declarant Control Period, the Owners shall elect a Board of Directors of at least three directors.

#### ARTICLE VI BOARD OF DIRECTORS

#### 6.01 Number, Tenure and Qualifications

- (a) The business and affairs of the Association shall be managed by a Board of Directors consisting of not less than three nor more than five directors, each of whom shall be (a) an individual Owner; (b) a partner, trustee, officer, director or twenty-five percent shareholder of an organizational Owner; or (c) one of the directors appointed by Declarant. A Person other than a director appointed by Declarant shall automatically cease to be a director at such time as such Person ceases to be an individual Owner or a partner, trustee, officer, director or twenty-five percent shareholder of an organizational Owner. Each initial director shall serve until the first annual meeting of the Owners, except that upon Declarant's loss of its right to appoint all directors pursuant to Section 5.01 above, one director appointed by Declarant shall be replaced with a director elected by the Owners in accordance with Section 5.02 above. Each director shall hold office until the election and qualification of his successor or until his earlier death, resignation or removal.
- (b) At the annual meeting, the members shall elect one director for a term of one (1) year, one or two directors for a term of two (2) years, and one or two directors for a term of three (3) years; and at each annual meeting thereafter, the members shall elect one (1) or two (2) directors as the case may be for a term of three (3) years each. It is intended that the term of office for directors shall be staggered so that no more than forty percent (40%) of directorships shall come up for election in any one (1) year. The initial directors shall determine the length of their terms by lottery.
  - (c) The number of directors may be changed by amendment of these bylaws in the manner set forth herein; provided, however, that the initial Board of Directors shall consist of four members, and the size of the Board of Directors shall not be increased until the expiration of the Declarant Control Period.

#### 6.02 Resignations; Vacancies.

Any director may resign at any time by giving written notice to the president or to the secretary of the Association. Such resignation shall take effect on receipt of written notice by the Association, unless an effective time is set forth in such notice, in which event such resignation shall take effect at the time specified in such notice. Unless otherwise specified in a resignation notice, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. Any vacancy occurring on the Board of Directors (by reason of resignation, death or an increase in the number of directors) or any newly created directorship resulting from any increase in the authorized number of directors may be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors then in office though less than a quorum. A director elected to fill a vacancy or newly created directorship shall hold office until hen ext annual meeting of the Owners and until his successor is duly elected and qualified.

#### 6.03 Powers. The Board of Directors shall have the power to:

- (a) Adopt and publish rules and regulations governing the care and maintenance of Lots, including without limitation the removal of all Mountain Pine Beetle infested and standing dead trees on Lots and to establish penalties for the infraction thereof;
- (b) Suspend the voting rights of an Owner during any period in which such Owner shall be in default in the payment of any assessment, fine, or cost levied by the Association. Such rights may also be suspended after notice and hearing, for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days for infraction of published rules and regulations;
- (c) Employ a manager, independent contractors, or such other employees as they deem necessary, and to prescribe their duties.

#### 6.04 Managing Agent.

The Board of Directors may employ a manager or managing agent, or both, for the Association at a compensation established by the Board of Directors to perform such duties and services as the Board of Directors shall authorize. Any such delegation, however, shall not relieve the Board of Directors of its responsibility under the Declaration. If, and to the extent that, the Board of Directors delegates its powers relating to the collection, deposit, transfer or disbursement of Association funds to a manager or managing agent, or both, such manager or managing agent, or both shall:

- (a) maintain fidelity insurance coverage or a bond in an amount not less than \$50,000 or such higher amount as the Board of Directors may require;
- (b) maintain all funds and accounts of the Association separate from the funds and accounts of any other associations managed by the manager or managing agent, and maintain all reserve accounts of each association so managed separate from operational accounts of the Association; and
- (c) have prepared and present to the Association an annual accounting for Association funds and a financial statement, which accounting and financial statement shall be prepared by the managing agent, a public accountant, or a certified public accountant.

#### 6.05 Regular Meetings.

Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held without call or formal notice at such places within or outside the State of Colorado, and at such times as the Board of Directors from time to time by vote may determine. Any business may be transacted at a regular meeting. The regular meeting of the Board of Directors for the election of officers and for such other business as may come before the meeting may be held without call or formal notice immediately after, and at the same place as, the annual meeting of Owners, or any special meeting of Owners at which a member of the Board of Directors is elected.

#### 6.06 Special Meetings.

Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at any place within the State of Colorado at any time when called by the president, or by two or more directors, upon the giving of at least three days' prior notice of the time and place thereof to each director by leaving such notice with him or her or at his or her residence or usual place of business, or by mailing or telegraphing it prepaid, and addressed to him or her at his or her post office address as it appears on the books of the Association, or by telephone. Notices need not state the purposes of the meeting. No notice of any adjourned meeting of the directors shall be required.

#### 6.07 Quorum.

A majority of the number of directors fixed by these bylaws, as amended from time to time, shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, but a lesser number may adjourn any meeting. When a quorum is present at any meeting, a majority of the directors in attendance shall, except where a larger number is required by law, by the Articles or by these Bylaws, decide any question brought before such meeting.

#### 6.08 Waiver of Notice.

Before, at or after any meeting of the Board of Directors, any director may, in writing, waive notice of such meeting and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice. Attendance by a director at any meeting of the Board of Directors shall be a waiver of notice by him or her except when such director attends the meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.

#### 6.09 Informal Action by Directors.

Any action required or permitted to be taken at a meeting of the directors may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all of the directors entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter thereof. Such consent shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote of the directors.

### ARTICLE VII OFFICERS AND AGENTS

#### 7.01 General.

The officers of the Association shall be a president (who shall be chosen from among the members of the Board of Directors), one or more vice presidents, a secretary and a treasurer. The Board of Directors may appoint such other officers, assistant officers, committees and agents, including assistant secretaries and assistant treasurers, as they may consider necessary or advisable, which other officers and/or assistant officers shall be chosen in such manner and hold their offices for such terms and have such authority and duties as from time to time may be determined by the Board of Directors. One person may hold any two offices, except that no person may simultaneously hold the offices of president and secretary. In all cases where the duties of any officer, agent or employee are not prescribed by the Bylaws or by the Board of Directors, such officer, agent or employee shall follow the orders and instructions of the president.

#### 7.02. Removal of Officers.

The Board of Directors may remove any officer, either with or without cause, and elect a successor at any regular meeting of the Board of Directors, or at any special meeting of the Board of Directors called for such purpose.

#406781 7

#### 7.03 Vacancies.

A vacancy in any office, however occurring, shall be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the term.

#### 7.04 President.

The president shall be the chief executive officer of the Association. He or she shall preside at all meetings of the Association and of the Board of Directors, and shall have the general and active control of the affairs and business of the Association and general supervision of its officers, agents and employees. The president of the Association is designated as the officer with the power to prepare, execute, certify and record amendments to the Declaration on behalf of the Association.

#### 7.05 Vice Presidents.

The vice presidents shall assist the president and shall perform such duties as may be assigned to them by the president or by the Board of Directors. In the absence of the president, the vice president designated by the Board of Directors or (if there be no such designation) designated in writing by the president shall have the powers and perform the duties of the president. If no such designation shall be made, all vice presidents may exercise such powers and perform such duties.

#### 7.06 Secretary.

The secretary shall:

- (a) keep the minutes of the proceedings of the Owners and the Board of Directors;
- (b) see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws, the Declaration and as required by law;
- (c) be custodian of the corporate records and of the seal of the Association and affix the seal to all documents when authorized by the Board of Directors;
- (d) keep at the Association's principal offices a record containing the names and registered addresses of all Owners, the designation of the Lot owned by each Owner, and, if such Lot is mortgaged and the Association has received written notice of such mortgage from the Mortgagee, the name and address of such Mortgagee; and
- (e) in general, perform all duties incident to the office of secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him or her by the president or by the Board of Directors. Assistant secretaries, if any, shall have the same duties and powers, subject to supervision by the secretary.

#406781 8

#### 7.07 Treasurer.

The treasurer shall be the principal financial officer of the Association and shall have the care and custody of all funds, securities, evidences of indebtedness and other personal property of the Association and shall deposit the same in accordance with the instructions of the Board of Directors. He or she shall receive and give receipts and acquittances for moneys paid in on account of the Association, and shall pay out of the funds on hand all bills, payrolls and other just debts of the Association of whatever nature upon maturity. He or she shall perform all other duties incident to the office of the treasurer and, upon request of the Board of Directors, shall make such reports to it as may be required at any time. He or she shall, if required by the Board of Directors, give the Association a bond in such sums and with such sureties as shall be satisfactory to the Board of Directors, conditioned upon the faithful performance of his or her duties and for the restoration to the Association of all books, papers, vouchers, money and other property of whatever kind in his or her possession or under his or her control belonging to the Association. The treasurer shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be from time to time prescribed by the Board of Directors or the president. The assistant treasurers, if any, shall have the same powers and duties, subject to the supervision of the treasurer.

# ARTICLE VIII RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE OWNERS

Each Owner shall have the rights, duties and obligations set forth in the Association Documents.

# ARTICLE IX EVIDENCE OF OWNERSHIP, REGISTRATION OF MAILING ADDRESS AND LIEN HOLDERS

#### 9.01 Proof of Ownership.

Except for those Owners who initially contracted to purchase a Lot from Declarant, any Person on becoming an Owner shall furnish to the Association a photocopy or a certified copy of the recorded instrument vesting that Person with an ownership interest in the Lot. Such copy shall remain in the files of the Association. An Owner shall not be deemed to be in good standing and shall not be entitled to vote at any annual or special meeting of Owners unless this requirement is first satisfied.

#### 9.02 Registration of Mailing Address.

The address of the Lot within the Subdivision owned by a given Owner or group of Owners shall be used as the registered address required by the Declaration for such Owner(s), unless such Owner(s) furnish to the secretary of the Association a written notice setting forth another address as the registered address.

9

#406781

#### 9.03 Address of the Association.

The address of the Association shall be 0069 Marksberry Way, P.O. Box 8029, Breckenridge, Colorado 80424. Such address may be changed from time to time upon written notice to all Owners and all listed Mortgagees.

## ARTICLE X SECURITY INTEREST IN MEMBERSHIP

Owners entitled to vote shall have the right irrevocably to constitute and appoint a Mortgagee their true and lawful attorney-in-fact to vote their Membership in the Association at any and all meetings of the Association and to vest in the Mortgagee any and all rights, privileges and powers that they have as Owners under the Articles and these Bylaws or by virtue of the Declaration. Such proxy shall become effective upon the filing of notice by the Mortgagee with the secretary of the Association at such time or times as the Mortgagee shall deem its security in jeopardy by reason of the failure, neglect or refusal of the Association, the Board of Directors or the Owners to carry out their duties as set forth in the Declaration. A release of the Mortgage covering the subject Lot shall operate to revoke such proxy. Nothing herein contained shall be construed to relieve Owners, as mortgagors, of their duties and obligations as Owners or to impose upon the Mortgagee the duties and obligations of an Owner.

### ARTICLE XI AMENDMENTS

#### 11.01 By Directors.

Except as limited by law, the Articles, the Declaration or these Bylaws, the Board of Directors shall have power to make, amend and repeal the Bylaws of the Association at any regular meeting of the Board of Directors or at any special meeting called for that purpose at which a quorum is represented. If, however, the Owners entitled to vote shall make, amend or repeal any Bylaw, the directors shall not thereafter amend the same in such manner as to defeat or impair the object of the Owners in taking such action.

#### 11.02 Owners.

The Owners may, by the vote of the holders of at least sixty-seven percent (67%) of the votes of the Owners entitled to vote, unless a greater percentage is expressly required by law, the Articles, the Declaration or these Bylaws, make, alter, amend or repeal the Bylaws of the Association at any annual meeting or at any special meeting called for that purpose at which a quorum shall be represented.

### ARTICLE XII MISCELLANEOUS

#### 12.01 Seal.

The corporate seal of the Association shall be circular in form and shall contain the name of the Association, the year of its organization and the words "Seal, Colorado."

#### 12.02 Fiscal Year.

The fiscal year of the Association shall be such as may from time to time be established by the Board of Directors.

#### 12.03 Construction with Other Documents.

The Declaration, as it may be amended or supplemented from time to time, and the Articles, as they may be amended from time to time, are hereby incorporated herein. The provisions of such instruments shall control in the event of an irreconcilable conflict with the provisions of these Bylaws. Similarly, the Rules and Regulations issued by the Board of Directors, as such Rules and Regulations may be amended or supplemented from time to time, are hereby incorporated herein, and together with the Declaration, the Articles and these Bylaws shall control each Owner's rights and obligations with respect to Braddock Hill.

### RESOLUTION OF THE

### BRADDOCK HILL PROPERTY OWNERS' ASSOCIATION, INC. REGARDING MAINTENANCE OF LOTS BY OWNERS

SUBJECT: The adoption of policies, rules, regulations for the removal of insect and disease infected trees (including the Mountain Pine Beetle) and standing dead trees and shrubbery in the Subdivision.

**PURPOSE:** To provide for a fair and systematic procedure and program to address the various insect and disease infestation crises effecting the tree vegetation in and around the Subdivision and the removal of standing dead trees and shrubbery.

**AUTHORITY:** The Declarations of Land Use Restrictions, as recorded in Summit County, Colorado, the Articles of Incorporation of the Braddock Hill Property Owners' Association, Inc., the Bylaws of the Association, and Colorado law.

**EFFECTIVE DATE:** August 3, 2010

**RESOLUTION:** The Board of Directors of the Braddock Hill Property Owners' Association, Inc. hereby enacts the following policy:

The Association has pursued an aggressive Mountain Pine Beetle program over the past years. The remaining trees in the Subdivision may now face threats from other bark beetles, insects, viruses, or fungi. In developing a plan of action to protect the vegetation in the Subdivision, the Board may conduct surveys of property in the Subdivision: (1) to evaluate the effectiveness of beetle spraying programs; (2) to identify the number of newly infested trees; and (3) to identify the number of standing dead trees on each property. The combined efforts of spraying and removing most beetle infested trees in a timely fashion can be successful in controlling the spread of the Mountain Pine Beetle and other bark beetles and diseases.

Owners are required to cut down, remove, and chip all beetle infested trees and standing dead trees and shrubbery on their property by July 1 of each year.

A fall survey that identifies the number of beetle infected trees and standing dead trees by lot number will be provided to each Owner. The newly infested trees will be marked with a ring of spray paint and standing dead trees with a spray-painted dot approximately four feet above the ground. Every Owner whose property has been identified to have beetle infested and standing dead trees is encouraged to contract with a licensed tree contractor for the removal of such trees. If a tree contractor is retained, then such contractor shall be required to complete the work by the July 1 deadline. A list of approved tree contractors licensed is available from the Town's website found at www.townofbreckenridge.com. Owners who undertake for themselves the work of cutting down, removing, and chipping beetle infested trees and standing dead trees on their property are required to complete the work by July 1 of each year. The chipping of the beetle infested and standing dead trees is permitted to be done on the property, thereby eliminating the need to dispose of the chips offsite.

There may be instances where accurate boundary lines between properties are difficult to determine and the fall survey may inadvertently misidentify the location/owner of trees. If an Owner questions the accuracy of the fall survey, it is the Owner's responsibility to notify the Board of Directors, in writing, and, when feasible, contact the adjoining Lot Owners to determine the correct location and allocation of beetle infested trees and dead trees of the respective Lots. Once the boundary and ownership issues have been resolved, contact Hawk's View Management at (970) 453-6900 so that the fall survey may be updated and changes reported to the Town of Breckenridge.

The Board of Directors may provide to the Town of Breckenridge the names and addresses of all Owners who have not cut down and remove all beetle infested trees from the Owner's property as required by this policy and by Town Ordinance. The Town of Breckenridge may take action against the Owner in accordance with Town Ordinance. Please contact the Community Development Department at (970) 453-3160 for more information

If any Owner fails to fulfill his/her duties and responsibilities as outlined above, the Board of Directors on behalf of the Association shall, at its sole discretion, have the right and power to:

- (1) Impose fines and administrative costs assessed against the Owner and such fines and costs may be declared a lien on the land; or
- (2) Perform the work of cutting down, removing, and chipping beetle infested trees and standing dead trees on such Owner's Lot. The Owner on whose Lot such work is performed shall be liable for the cost of such work and shall promptly reimburse the Association for the cost incurred. Entry by the Association, its agents or employees, on the property of the Owner or lessee and all actions taken thereon in connection with the care and maintenance of such property shall not be deemed a trespass and all claims for damages by reason not are hereby expressly waived.

The fines and administrative costs referenced above are set as follows:

- (1) Fines of up to \$75 per tree; and
- (2) A one-time administrative cost of \$500.00 per year.

Fines and administrative costs assessed against an Owner are payable to the Association and are due on or before August 15 of the applicable year. All costs and expenses incurred by the Association for work performed are due and owing to the Association within 30 days of written notice to the Owner. All fines, costs, and expenses not paid by the due date shall be considered delinquent thereafter until paid and the Association shall be entitled to collect interest on the unpaid balance as set forth in the Declarations and in accordance with federal and state law. If any Owner shall fail to reimburse the Association any such amounts, then the fines, costs, expenses, fees, and interest shall be a debt of such Owner payable to the Association and shall be a lien against such Owner's interest in the property.

If any legal or equitable proceedings for the collection of any such debt are instituted, the losing party or parties shall pay the attorney's fees of the prevailing party or parties in such amount as may be fixed by the court in such proceedings.

Fines, costs, expenses, fees, and interest are in addition to the enforcement remedies available to the Board of Directors or the Association. All remedies provided herein or at law or in equity shall be cumulative and not exclusive.

Contact Hawks View Management or any member of the Board of Directors with questions or comments.

This Policy will be disclosed to Owners in accordance with Colorado law. This document will be maintained by the Secretary of the Braddock Hill Property Owners' Association, Inc. and will be displayed on the Association's web site found at www.highlandsatbreck.com/braddock.php. Copies of the policies will be provided to Owners upon request.

In witness whereof the undersigned has executed these procedures for the adoption and amendment of policies, procedures and rules on August 3, 2010.

Braddock Hill Property Owners' Association, Inc.

President